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1. Name

historic N/A

and or common Long Ridge Village Historic District

2. Location

multiple,

street & number see contlnuation sheet N/B L not for publication
Stamford N
city, town amto _/_A vicinity of
; Connecticut Fairfield 001
state code county code
- - -

3. Classification
Category Ownership Status Present Use
X district ____ public —X_occupied —___ agriculture — museum
___ building(s) . private —__ unoccupied — commercial park
___structure _¥_ both ____work in progress —__ educational _—_ private residence
— site Public Acquisition Accessible — entertainment X religious
—_ object — in process X yes: restricted —— government — scientific

—__ being.considered —.. Yes: unrestricted —— industrial — transportation

N/A X 'no —__ military X _other: Fire Dept.
4. Owner of Property
rmmé Muitiple Ownership
street & number Se€€ continuation sheet
city, town. —— vicinity of state
5. Location of Legal Descrlptlon

. 01ld Town Hall
courthouse, registry of deeds, etc.
175 Atlantic Street

street & number ‘

Stamford Connecticut
city, town state

6. Representation in Existing Surveys

State Register of Historic Places
title -

has this property been determined eligible?

X
___yes __no

1986

date — federal

X
. state ____county ____local

depository for survey records

Connecticut Historical Commission ~ 59 South Prospect Street

Hartford
city, town

Connecticut

state




7. Description

Condition ; Check one Check one
—_excellent __ deteriorated __x_unaltered X original site
VI goOdi;; . ——ruins —x_ altered _x__ moved date _©- 1900

— fair —— unexposed

Describe the present and original (if known) physical appearance

The Long Ridge Village Historic District is a rural residential settlement
located at the northern boundary of Stamford, Connecticut, eight miles north of its
central business district. It includes 66 contributing buildings (34 dwellings, two
churches, and 30 outbuildings) and six contributing structures that range in date of
construction from c.1750 to 1925, and nineteen modern non-contributing buildings
(nine dwellings and ten outbuildings). (Map #1) The contributing buildings were
built in a variety of styles, primarily Colonial, Federal, and Greek Revival.

Topographically, Long Ridge is a relatively level upland region trending to the
north and south, and traversed from the northwest to the southeast by the tree-lined
street formerly known in its entirety as Long Ridge Road. Except for the
northernmost section, which continues to the New York State line, this street was
bypassed by a new route to the west in the 1930s and re-named 0ld Long Ridge Road.
The district's boundaries include all of the properties on both sides of the street,
giving the district an elongated shape, with an eastern extension consisting of
several adjacent properties on the western end of Rockrimmon Road. The properties
that surround the district have not been included because they contain newer
dwellings or because their structures, if they are old, are not easily visible from
the district .

The southern entrance to the district is where 0ld Long Ridge Road almost
merges with Long Ridge Road (the 1930s bypass) and then veers off to the right,
continuing through the district as its central spine. The first house on the west
side of the street is the Second Empire dwelling at #250, consisting of a
clapboarded first story surrounded by a partially enclosed porch showing chamfered
posts and scrolled brackets, and surmounted by .a concave, slate-shingled mansard
roof punctuated by gabled dormers with arched windows (Photograph #1). To the rear
is a side-gabled Italianate barn remodelled into a restaurant but retaining its
board-and-batten siding and cupola with round-arched vents. Across the street at
#333 is the Seth Cook House, a commanding three-story Italianate dwelling showing
clapboard siding and surmounted by a low-pitched hipped roof crowned with cupola and
distinguished by a centrally placed pediment. It also features bracketed eaves
sheltering rectangular frieze-band windows (Photograph #2). To the north, at #353,
is the Jonas White House, a 2%-story Colonial featuring a side-lit entry surmounted
by a triglyph and metope frieze and a projecting cornice curved at the center.
Window sash is nine-over-six on the original three-bay section to the right, and
six-over-six on the two-bay north wing (Photograph #3).

Further north, on the eastern side of the street, is a 24%-story front-gabled
vernacular Italianate at #380, which shows a round-arched window in the gable as
well as a polygonal tower and a Tuscan-columned verandah, both constructed c.1900
after the house was moved from its original location south of #333. To the north is
the Charles ILockwood House at #392, a lk-story side-gabled Greek Revival featuring a
side-1lit entry with a fan-light, small frieze-band windows, and a covering of wood
shingles (Photograph #4). Across the street at #405, is the Samuel Ingersol house,
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Inclusive street numbers below from Stamford Assessor's Records:

Long Ridge Road: 2856,2873,2874,2884,2891,2905,2916

014 Long Ridge Road: 250,250r,333,Card 15W (no #), 353,366,379,380,392,402,
405,421,424,432,435,448,455,455x,462,465,481,484,
Card3OWw (no #), 493,503,506,509,514,525,528,535,555.

Rock Rimmon Road: 1327,1333,1336,1364,1365,1374,1377.
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PROPERTY OWNERS IN LONG RIDGE VILLAGE, STAMFORD, CT 06905

LONG RIDGE ROAD

Map Block Lot Card Owner Address

212 400 56 166 Joseph Negyesi, 2856 Long Ridge Road

249 403 65 189 Warren Voigt, 2873 Long Ridge Road

212 400 B le7 Allen Ronhowsky, 2874 Long Ridge Road

212 400 1B 168 Allen B. Miller, Jr., 2884 Long Ridge Road
249 403 A 191 George & Pat Oaks, 2891 Long Ridge Road
249 403 66A 192 Laura C. Levine, 2905 Long Ridge Road

212 400 3 170 George E. Didisheim, 2916 Long Ridge Road

OLD LONG RIDGE ROAD

Map Block Lot Card Owner Address

210 399 1.2 14 Joseph Putrino, 39 Don Bob Road, Stamford, CT 06903

210 400 45 15 Long Ridge Fire Dept., 01ld Long Ridge and Erskine Road
247 402 A 29 Anthony J. Fouracre, 333 0ld Long Ridge Road

210 402 30 Johan G. Kahm, 353 0ld Long Ridge Road

210 400 46 1le6 Long Ridge Fire Dept., 366 0ld Long Ridge Road

247 A 34 Arrietta H. Smith, 379 0ld Long Ridge Road

210 400 47 17 Long Ridge Fire Dept., 380 0ld Long Ridge Road

210 400 48 18 Florence Horner, 1352 Riverbank Road, Stamford, CT 06903
210 400 B 19-20 Florence Horner, 1352 Riverbank Road, Stamford, CT 06903
210 402 D 36-38 Louise C. Dann, 405-421 0ld Long Ridge Road

210 400 49 21-2 Eve Hausman, 424 0ld Long Ridge Road

210 400 50 23-4 George Bartholomew & Judy Bouscaren,

432-438 014 Long Ridge Road
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Map Block Lot Card

210
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249
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249
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212
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249
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402

400

402

400
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402

402

402

400

400

400

402

402
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403

C 25

A 41
42-3

B 26-7

61 44-48

E 28-29

D 30

B 49

B 50

B 51

C 31

B 32

A 33

C 52

A 54

A-2 55

A-1 56

RIMMON ROAD

403

403

402

12 82

13 83

10 93

Owner Address
Rhoda Rossmore, 448 01ld Long Ridge Road
Marie Hughes, 435 014 Long Ridge Road

Long Ridge Congregational Church & Hall,
455 0l1d Long Ridge Road

Hildegard S. Hard, 462 0ld Long Ridge Road
Gretchen Uppercu Hill, 465-481 0ld Long Ridge Road
John & Nancy F. Salisbury, 484 0ld Long Ridge Road

Joshua & Netta Logan, 435 East 52 Street, New York,
New York 10022

St.Francis Parish, 493 0ld Long Ridge Road (0ld Parsonage)

St.Francis Parish, 493 rear 014 Long Ridge Road
(meeting house)

St.Francis Parish, 503 0ld Long Ridge Road
Shirley T. Chillington, 506 0Old Long Ridge Road
Shirley T. Chillington, 514 0ld Long Ridge Road
Shirley T. Chillington, 528 0l1d Long Ridge Road
Frederick A. Leigh, 509 Old Long Ridge Road
David R. & Janice Mills, 525 0ld Long Ridge Road

Howard & Susan Ballenzweig, 32 West 88 Street, New York,
New York 10024

Edwin & Jeri Ann Schwartz, 555 0ld Long Ridge Road

John & Brenda Walsh, 1327 Rock Rimmon Road (C)
John L. DeForest, 1333 Rock Rimmon Road (C)

Ralph DeForest, 1336 Rock Rimmon Road (C)



NP8 Form 10-900-8
282)

OMB Approval No. 1024-0018

United States Department of the Interior

National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places
Inventory—Nomination Form

Long Ridge Village Historic District, Stamford, CT

Continuation sheet Owner of Property item number 4
Map Block Lot Card Owner Address
249 402 A 94 Franklin M. Heller, 1364 Rock Rimmon Road
249 403 B 84 Ulla Posnansky, 1365 Rock Rimmon Road
249 402 B %26 John Russell, 1374 Rock Rimmon Road

249 403 B 85 Ulla Posnansky, 1365 Rock Rimmon Road
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Representation in Existing Surveys

Historic Resources Inventory

1977

Depository for survey records Municipal Office Building
429 Atlantic Street
Stamford, CT 06901
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a five-bay, 2%-story Colonial covered with wood shingles and showing two interior
brick end-chimneys. It is further distinguished by a central trabeated entry with
leaded glass sidelights flanked by fluted pilasters and surmounted by a fluted
architrave, plain frieze, and molded cornice. Window sash is nine-over-six at the
first floor and six-over-six at the second story (Photograph #5). Across the street
to the east, at #424, is a 24%-story Federal covered with wood shingles and showing
corbeled end-chimneys and a gabled entry porch sheltering the side-lit and
pilastered main entry. Next are two side-gabled clapboarded dwellings: #432
features a transomed entry, while #448 shows two interior end-chimneys and prominent
corner boards. To the rear is a board-and-batten Italianate barn with octagonal
windows and a belvedere with round-arched vents. Next door, at #462, is the
Nathaniel White House, another 2%-story Federal house whose side-lit entry features
a carved sunburst design in its cornice. Its l%-story board-and-batten south wing
was originally a cobbler's shop (Photograph #6). At #455 is the Greek Revival-styled
Long Ridge Congregational Church, distinguished by a high portico consisting of four
unfluted columns with Egyptian-influenced lotus-leaf capitals supporting a plain
architrave and frieze surmounted by a rather high flushboard pediment. The
flushboard facade features a pilastered entry surmounted by a full entablature,
while the roof shows a slightly set-back square belfry composed of flushboard base
with a projecting cornice, above which rises the clapboarded cupola, which shows
pilastered corners, rectangular louvers, and a full entablature (Photograph #7) .

To the north, are two clapboarded Colonial houses with saltbox rooflines: the
William White Jr. House (#48l1), a lk-story dwelling with a centered board-and-batten
door (Photograph #9), and the Jacob White House (#484), a 2%-story building
featuring a centered transomed-and-side-lit entry and a U-shaped succession of
¢.1940 wings that connect it to a cobbler's shop to the southwest (Photograph #8).
The east side of the street shows the William Mead House (#493), a l%-story
side-gabled dwelling with a flushboard facade and an unusual front porch showing
stickwork supports, valances, and side screens constructed in an "X" pattern
(Photograph #10). The neighboring St. Francis Episcopal Church (#503) is almost
identical to the Congregational Church except for its four fluted Doric columns and
the band of denticulated molding that surrounds the building at the top of its
architrave (Photograph #11). Further up the west side of the street is the Hickford
Marshall House (#528), a striking two-story Greek Revival dwelling constructed of
granite ashlar trimmed with red sandstone and framed by massive wooden corner
pilasters supporting an equally impressive frieze punctuated by horizontal windows.
The centered, in antis entry is flanked by fluted Doric columns framed by oversized
pilasters, while the front porch consists of filagreed cast-iron rails and supports
carrying a bracketed cornice with a band of denticulated molding. Crowning the flat
roof is a clapboarded belvedere, also framed by prominent corner pilasters and a
wide frieze (Photograph #12).
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Facing the V-shaped northern intersection with the Long Ridge Road bypass, is
#535, a vertical-boarded, side-gabled barn converted into a residence and
distinguished by second-story round windows and a centered gable with an arched
window. To the north is the old Todd Shoe Factory at #555, a long 2%-story
side-gabled building showing a central side~lit entry, a wrap-around porch featuring
sawn, open-work posts and rails, and a row of six half-windows on the third floor,
just below the eaves. To the southeast is an attached cobbler's shop (Photograph
#13). On the other side of the intersection, is #2874 Long Ridge Road, moved back
from the front of its lot when the bypass was built in the 1930s, removing most of
its front yard. This lk-story side-gabled dwelling features a shed-roofed portico
supported by a chamfered posts, a flushboard facade framed by pilasters under the
porch roof, and a transomed entry (Photograph #14). To the north is #2884, a
2%-story saltbox-roofed Greek Revival featuring an impressive Greek-temple-style,
three-bay entry faced with flushboard siding, framed by pilasters supporting a
prominent entablature, and focused on the centered, side-lit front door, also framed
by pilasters (Photograph #15). On the other side of the street is the Jesse Waring
House at #2891, a 2%-story dwelling Colonial dwelling featuring a centered entry
flanked by sidelights and fluted pilasters, twelve-over-twelve window sash, and an
arched window in the north gable (Photograph #16). Set back from the road is #2905,
a two-story cross-gabled dwelling consisting of an original section moved to this
location and sited with its gable end facing the street, and a long side-gabled-wing
built much later (Photograph #17). The last building on the street, located on the
New York State line, is the Joseph Waring House at #2916, a 2%-story Federal
dwelling featuring a centered entry flanked by sidelights and surmounted by a wide
frieze and a projecting cornice (Photograph #18) .

The western end of Rock Rimmon Road includes seven dwellings, including #1374,
a front-gabled 2%-story dwelling with a pedimented entry and a round-arched attic
window with Gothic Revival trim; #1377, a lk-story side-gabled dwelling retaining
its clapboard siding and front porch showing turned balusters; and two virtually
identical 2%-story Colonial Revival dwellings at #1327 and #1333, each one showing a
pyramidal roof punctuated by hipped dormers, an enclosed L-shaped front porch, and a
covering of wood shingles arranged in alternate wide and narrow bands. At #1336 is
the only intact farm complex in the district consisting of a 2%-story clapboarded
farmhouse , board and batten barns and a vertical-board corn crib and well house.
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INVENTORY OF STRUCTURES

Format:

Contributing (C) or Non-contributing (NC), Address or Location, Common Name
(Historic Name), Date, Style, Builder.

(C) 2856 Long Ridge Road, ¢.1870, Vernacular.

(NC) 2856 Long Ridge Road, 1946, Vernacular Garage.

(C) 2873 Long Ridge Road, c¢.1850, Vernacular.

(c) 2873 Long Ridge Road, ¢.1850, Vernacular Privy.

(NC) 2873 Long Ridge Road, c.l1l950, Vernacular Garage.

(C) 2874 Long Ridge Road, c¢.1845, Vernacular (Photograph #14).

(C) 2874 Long Ridge Road, ¢.1850, Vernacular Barn.

(c) 2884 Long Ridge Road, c¢.1840, Greek Revival (Photograph #15).

(NC) 2884 Long Ridge Road, 1957, Vernacular Garage.

(c) 2891 Long Ridge Road, Jesse Waring House, 1774, Colonial (Photograph #16).

(¢) 2891 Long Ridge Road, ¢.1860, Vernacular Barn.

(C) 2905 Long Ridge Road, c¢.1840, Vernacular (Photograph #17).

(C) 2916 Long Ridge Road, Joseph Waring House, ¢.1780, Federal (Photograph #18).

(¢) 2916 Long Ridge Road, ¢.1800, Vernacular Barn

(c) 250 014 Long Ridge Road, John Bostwick House, c¢.1840 (remodeled c.1870),
Second Empire (Photograph #1).

(c) 250 0l1d Long Ridge Road, c¢.1870, Italinate Barn, (Photograph #1).

(C) Northwest corner of Erskine Road and 0ld Long Ridge Road, c.1840 (remodeled
c¢.1870) , Vernacular with Second Empire elements.

(c) 333 0l1d Long Ridge Road, Seth Cook House, c.1870, Italianate (Photograph #2).

(C) 333 0ld Long Ridge Road, c.1870, Pagoda-style Gazebo.

(C) 333 014 Long Ridge Road, c.1870, Pagoda-style Well-house.

(c) 333 014 Long Ridge Road, ¢.187Q, Vernacular Barn.

(c) 353 01d Long Ridge Road, Jonas White House, c.1770, Colonial (Photograph #3).

(c) 353 0l1ld Long Ridge Road, c.1800, Vernacular Barn.

(c) 353 0l1d Long Ridge Road, c¢.1900, Vernaular.

(NC) 366 0l1d Long Ridge Road, 1960, Vernacular.

(NC) 366 0l1d 0ld Ridge Road, ¢.1965, Vernacular Garage.

(NC) 379 0l1ld Long Ridge Road, 1961, Neo-Greek Revival.

(c) 380 0ld Long Ridge Road, c¢.1870, Vernacular with Italianate elements.

(C) 392 0l1d Long Ridge Road, Charles Lockwood House, c.1803, Greek Revival
(Photograph #4).

(C) 392 0l1d Long Ridge Road, ¢.1850, Vernacular Barn.

(NC) 402 0l1d Long Ridge Road, 1944, Vernacular.

(NC) 402 014 Long Ridge Road, ¢.1945, Vernacular.

(C) 405 0148 Long Ridge Road, Samuel Ingersol House, c.1756, Colonial
(Photograph #5).



NP8 Form 10-800-2
(2

OMB Approval No. 1024-0018

United States Department of the Interior
Natlonal Park Service

National Register of Historic Places
Inventory—Nomination Form

Long Ridge Village Historic District, Stamford, CT
Continuation sheet Description item number 7

(C) 405 0ld Long Ridge Road, c¢.1850, Vernacular Barn.

(¢) 405 014 Long Ridge Road, c¢.1850, Vernacular Barn.

(C) 405 0ld Long Ridge Road, c¢.1850, Vernacular Stable.

(C) 405 014 Long Ridge Road, c¢.1850, Vernacular Stable.

(¢) 405 0l1d Long Ridge Road, c¢.1850, Vernacular Barn.

(C) 405 0l1d Long Ridge Road, c¢.1850, Vernacular Barn.

(¢) 421 01d Long Ridge Road, c.1850, Vernacular Barn.

(¢) 421 o0ld Long Ridge Road, c¢.1900, Vernacular.

(C) 424 014 Long Ridge Road, c.l1850, Federal.

(C) 424 014 Long Ridge Road, c.1850, Vernacular Barn.

(c) 432 014 Long Ridge Road, Stanley Rowland House, c¢.1850, Vernacular.

(NC) 432 014 Long Ridge Road, 1975, Vernacular Garage.

(C) 432r 014 Long Ridge Road, ¢.1850, Vernacular.

(NC) 435 014 Long Ridge Road, 1985, Neo-Colonial.

(C) 448 014 Long Ridge Road, Lockwood Briggs House, c¢.1840, Vernacular.

(C) 448 014 Long Ridge Road, c.1870, Italianate Barn.

(C) 455 014 Long Ridge Road, Long Ridge Congregational Church, 1874, Greek
Revival. John Platt (Photograph #7).

(c) 455 0l1d Long Ridge Road, 1910, Vernacular.

(C) 455 01d Long Ridge Road, ¢.1840, Vernacular Horse Shed-Privy.

(C) 462 01d Long Ridge Road, Nathaniel White House, c.1810, Federal
(Photograph #6).

(C) 462 014 Long Ridge Road, c¢.1890, Vernacular.

(NC) 462 014 Long Ridge Road, c¢.1950, Vernacular Garage.

(C) 465 014 Long Ridge Road, c¢.1850, Vernacular.

(C) 465 014 Long Ridge Road, c.1l850, Vernacular Oxen Shed, now Cottage.

(C) 465 014 Long Ridge Road, c¢.1920, Vernacular Garage.

(c) 481 014 Long Ridge Road, William White House, c.1804, Colonial
(Photograph #9).

(C) 481 014 Long Ridge Road, c¢.1900, Vernacular.

(C) 481 014 Long Ridge Road, ¢.185Q, Vernacular Barn.

(C) 484 0l1d Long Ridge Road, Jacob White House, 1750, Colonial (Photograph #8) .

(c) 484 014 Long Ridge Road, ¢.1850, Vernacular Cobbler's Shop.

(C) 484 014 Long Ridge Road, ¢.1920, Vernacular Garage.

(NC) 484 014 Long Ridge Road, ¢.1955, Vernacular.

(NC) West Side (no #) 0ld Long Ridge Road, 1942, Vernacular.

(c) 493 014 Long Ridge Road, William Mead House, ¢.1850, Vernacular with Greek
Revival elements (Photograph #10).

(¢) 503 014 Long Ridge Road, St.Francis Episcopal Church (Universalist Society
Church), 1834, Greek Revival (Photograph #11).

(NC) 506 014 Long Ridge Road, 1953, Cape Cod.

(c) 509 014 Long Ridge Road, c.1875, Vernacular.

(c) 509 014 Long Ridge Road, ¢.1880, Vernacular Barn.

(c) 509 0l1d Long Ridge Road, ¢.1880, Vernacular Well.

(NC) 509 014 Long Ridge Road, ¢.1950, Vernacular Garage.
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(NC) 514 01d Long Ridge Road, 1968, Neo-Colonial.

(c) 525 0l1ld Long Ridge Road, 1925, Colonial Revival.

(C) 525 014 Long Ridge Road, ¢.1925, Colonial Revival Garage.

(c) 528 01d Long Ridge Road, Hickford Marshall House, c.1840, Greek Revival
(Photograph #12).

(C) 535 014 Long Ridge Road, c¢.1870, Vernacular.

(C) 555 01d Long Ridge Road, 0ld Shoe Factory, 1838, Federal/Greek Revival
(Photograph #13).

(C) 555 014 Long Ridge Road, ¢.1840, Vernacular Cobbler's Shop
(Photograph #13).

(C) 555 014 Long Ridge Road, ¢.1840, Vernacular Well.

(C) 1327 Rock Rimmon Road, 1914, Colonial Revival.

(C) 1333 Rock Rimmon Road, John DeForest House, 1914, Colonial Revival.

(C) 1333 Rock Rimmon Road, c¢.1915, Vernacular Garage.

(C) 1336 Rock Rimmon Road, ¢.1l870, Vernacular.

(C) 1336 Rock Rimmon Road, ¢.1870, Vernacular Barn.

(C) 1336 Rock Rimmon Road, ¢.1870, Vernacular Barn.

(C) 1336 Rock Rimmon Road, c¢.1870, Vernacular Corn Crib.

(¢) 1336 Rock Rimmon Road, c¢.l1l870, Vernacular Barn.

(NC) 1364 Rock Rimmon Road, 1968, Cape Cod.

(NC) 1364 Rock Rimmon Road, 1968, Cape Cod Garage.

(NC) 1365 Rock Rimmon Road, c¢.1950, Vernacular.

(NC) 1365 Rock Rimmon Road, c¢.1950, Vernacular Garage.

(C) 1374 Rock Rimmon Road, 1862, Italianate.

(C) 1374 Rock Rimmon Road, c¢.l1865, Vernacular Well.

(C) 1377 Rock Rimmon Road, c¢.1850, Vernacular.

(NC) 1377 Rock Rimmon Road, 1954, Vernacular Garage.
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produce 20,000 pairs of shoes a year. Up to the 1880s, Long Ridge Road was
Stamford's center for shoe manufacturing, with according to census data, one third
of the households in the village involved in this industry. The product produced in
Long Ridge was sold in local and interstate markets. In the late 19th century, with
failure of the proposed Port Chester - Ridgefield railroad, industry in Long Ridge
declined and the shoe factories moved south to the center of Stamford to be closer
to good transportation and the influx of immigrant labor. The only new business to
enter the village was Leroy DeForest's slaughter house and meat market at #1336 Rock
Rimmon Road.

Several of the shoe manufacturers lived on Long Ridge Road. Cook lived at #333,
Scofield at #432, and Lounsbury at #448. They were joined by other shoe makers such
as Charles M. Lockwood and hig son at #392, and Amaziah Brown at #424. This group
of people involved in the same industry, living in close proximity, created a
distinctive social enclave in the center of the district. With few exceptions, they
lived in predominately conservative Federal houses. However, Seth Cook, in 1870,
built a large Italianate mansion on the south end of the village and Charles
Lockwood built the first Greek Revival house in the village. As other families
became more prosperous, they, like William Brown (#424), altered their houses in
whatever style happened to be in vogue.

Long Ridge's turn to an industrial economy caused a tripling in the construction of
buildings in the first half of the 19th century to 19 houses and 2 churches. The
first Universalist church, was built in 1834 and the Congregationalists built the
Union meetinghouse in 1840 for their own denomination as well as for the
Episcopalians and Methodists.

Members of the community were also politically active: Hickford Marshall, a
shoemaker, was elected selectman in 1854; George Lounsbury was a member of the
General Assembly in 1855; and Frederick Scofield was a first selectman in Stamford.

The village's relative architectural integrity and proximity to New York City
attracted several famous people to the village. During the first quarter of the
20th century, Ernest Lederle, Chief of New York City's Health Commission and founder
of Lederle Laboratories, lived at #353 0ld Long Ridge Road. In 1954, Mary Moon
Hemingway, editor of House Beautiful and House and Garden, bought the property and
featured it in the February 1973 issue of the magazine. In 1922, Dr. Josephine
Baker, a pioneer in pediatrics, bought #462 0ld Long Ridge Road, and the stage and
film star Luise Rainer (Knittel) lived there in 1954-5, followed by stage and film
actress Mildred Dunnock who purchased the property in 1956 and lived there until
1965. Joshua Logan, director, producer, and co-author of South Pacific, lived at
#484 0l1ld Long Ridge Road from 1951 to 1971. Upon Logan's return from filming the
screen version of his play in the Orient, he commissioned Frank Okamura to transform
the rest of his property into a Japanese garden. Vivian Vance (Dodds) of I Love
Lucy fame lived in Long Ridge village at 509 Old Long Ridge Road from 1961 to 1967.
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In sum, 01ld Long Ridge Village is historically significant as an example of the
evolution of a disbursed settlement from 18th century agricultural community to 19th
century manufacturing community to 20th century haven for the New York acting
community.

Architectural Significance

The architecture of Long Ridge Village includes Stamford's last significant enclave
of 18th-century Colonial and Federal homes, as well as its largest assemblage of
Greek Revival houses and the two oldest Greek Revival churches in town. Two Second
Empire houses and an Italianate dwelling at the south end of the district serve as
reminders of the popularity of the picturesque modes during the third quarter of the
19th century. Three Colonial Revival houses were built in the early 20th century
and are compatible with the rest of the area's architecture.

The oldest group of houses in the district consists of five 18th century dwellings
and three built in the 19th century's first decade. The oldest show additions and
alterations but retain visual evidence of their original Colonial elements. The
Jacob White House (Photograph #8) reveals its original saltbox roof in its oldest
section. The Jonas White House (Photograph #3), built 1770, features nine-over-six
sash on its original half-house section, while the Jesse Waring House (Photograph
#16) , built 1774, shows twelve-over-twelve sash. Ironically, the house most
obviously Colonial is the William White House (Photograph #9), which was built in
1804, but shows an anachronistic saltbox roof and a board-and-batten door. Except
for this structure, all of the houses in this group feature Federal-style entryways,
which represent alterations in the earlier dwellings, like the Samuel Ingersol House
(Photograph #5), built in 1756 and featuring leaded sidelights, fluted pilasters,
and a fluted architrave, as well as delicately molded window surrounds. The entry
of the Jonas White House features a triglyph-and-metope frieze (Photograph #3),
while the Nathaniel White House, which was built in the Federal style, shows a
carved sunburst design over its trabeated doorway (Photograph #6).

The largest and architecturally most significant assemblage of buildings in the
district was built primarily in the Greek Revival style during the second quarter

of the nineteenth century. The earliest example, built in 1830, is the Charles
Lockwood House (Photograph #4), which features triglyph frieze-band windows, eared
window and door surrounds, and deep returns on its raking cornice. By far the most
stylish example is the Hickford Marshall House (Photograph #12), which combines a
number of stylistic elements unique to the area, particularly its ashlar walls which
are trimmed with red sandstone and framed by prominent corner pilasters and a wide
frieze - creating an unusually colorful and robustly proportioned example of the
Greek Revival. Other unique elements include a clapboarded belvedere crowning the
flat roof, an in-antis doorway featuring fluted Doric columns, and a front porch
constructed of filagreed cast iron, the delicate quality of which contrasts with the
rather massive scale of the structure's basic design. The William Mead House
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(Photograph #10) and #2884 Long Ridge Road (Photograph #15) both feature
anachronistic saltbox roofs, the former also showing a vernacular stickwork porch,
while the latter is distinguished by a Greek-temple entry, consisting of a three-bay
flushboard facade framed by pilasters and a prominent entablature. #2874 shows a
similar entry sheltered by a front porch (Photograph #14). The village's two nearly
identical churches are excellent examples of the temple-front Greek Revival church,
both showing the full development of the Greek-temple facade including a full-height
and full-width pedimented portico. St.Francis Episcopal Church (Universalist
Society Church) is the oldest extant church in Stamford and is distinguished from
its neighbor by a band of denticulated molding surrounding its architrave
(Photograph #11), while the Long Ridge Congregational Church features columns with
lotus-leaf capitals, a rare example of Egyptian-Revival influence (Photograph #7).
These churches are significant on a local level because of their skillful design and
the lack of other local examples.

The period following the Civil War is represented primarily by houses built in

the Italianate and Second Empire styles, the most prominent examples of each marking
the southern entrance to the district. The Seth Cook House (Photograph #2) is a
good example of the Italianate style, showing all of the typical elaborations of the
low-pitched, hip-roofed variant of the style, including a not-so-common cupola.
Broad eaves supported by paired brackets are found not only at the main roof, where
they shelter distinctive frieze-band windows, but also at the porch roof and the
cupola roof. The front porch features chamfered posts set on paneled posts
(unaccompanied by balustrades) and surmounted by exaggerated capitals. A
distinctive note is visible in the main roof's centered pediment, which is echoed
over the central paired window of the second story. The John Bostwick House
(Photograph #1) is likewise a good example of the Second Empire style, showing a
second-story concave mansard roof with gable dormers. The porch, which features
chamfered posts and scrolled brackets, is unusual in that it surrounds the house - a
rare occurrence in this style.

In sum, the district develops its significance from the physical fact that it is the
largest agglomeration of 18th century and early 19th century houses in Stamford, and
that it contains interesting g local examples of the " Greek Revival style, which has
otherwise largely disappeared from the city. The district also reflects the
popularity of this and other styles when Connecticut towns were evolving from
disbursed agricultural settlements into thriving industrial communities.



8. Significance

Period Areas of Significance—Check and justify below

—_— prehistoric __... archeology-prehistoric ._._ community planning . _ _landscape architecture ___ religion

... 1400-1499 ___ archeology-historic - .. conservation . law . science
——1500-1599 ____ agriculture -—— economics __._ literature ~-.— Sculpture
____1600-1699 _X _ architecture __._ education —__ military .. social/
X_1700-1799 ___ art . —.. engineering ——_ music humanitarian
X _..1800-1899 . __ commerce .——. exploration/settlement ____ philosophy — theater

X 1900~ . communications . X industry - politics/government ___ transportation
Criteria A, C ——.._ invention — other (specify)

see item 7 see item 7

Specific dates Builder/Architect

Statement of Significance (in one paragraph)

Long Ridge Village is architecturally significant on a local level due to its
concentration of very good examples of Colonial, Federal, and Greek Revival
buildings. (criterion C). The variously styled dwellings stand as evidence of the
18th-century disbursed settlement's transition from an agricultural community to a
shoe manufacturing center in the early 19th century (criterion A). Several
residents held important political positions in the town and the State General
Assembly, and the village provided a residential haven for prominent medical and
theatrical people during the 20th century. ’

Historical Significance

In 1717, Thomas Brush, James White and Michael Waring purchased 246 acres that had
been assigned to the Selleck Family in the original Stamford land divisions. Two
yvears later, John Ingersol, from Oyster Bay, Long Island, bought out Thomas Brush.
Actual development of the land did not occur until the 1750s, when the town decided
to build a road connecting the area to the village of Stamford proper. A disbursed
settlement then began to form on long lots that ranged east-west, divided by the
"Bedford Road," so-called because of its terminus in Bedford, New York. In 1779,
Robert Erskine, one of George Washington's mapmakers, recorded four farmsteads in
the district. Three were built by descendants of James White and Michael Waring,
while the fourth was built by Samuel Ingersol, a descendant of John. As well as
being farmers, the four residents participated in civic affairs. For instance,
Samuel Ingersol held the position of town viewer and surveyor. The villagers
supported the American Revolution, for many male adults enrolled, for at least a few
months, in Washington's army. The village grew slowly, and in 1790 the tax list for
the village (a larger area than the district) recorded a blacksmith, miller, tailor,
goldsmith, doctor, and innkeeper present in the agriculturally based community. Of
these people, Aaron Stuart, innkeeper, purchased John Ingersol's house (now 353 Old
Long Ridge Road) in 1789 and used it as the village's first inn.

In the first half of the 19th century, the shoe-making industry overtook agriculture
as the village's primary commercial activity. The oldest extant shoe factory dates
from the third decade of the 19th century (555 0ld Long Ridge Road) and was built by
George Todd. In 1846, Todd brought 13 boys from New York City to work as
apprentices in his new shoe factory, but the labor importation was unsuccessful, the
business was soon dissolved and the building became a dwelling for the Todd family.
In 1858, the (Frederick) Scofield and (Seth) Cook shoe factory was built on the west
side of 0l1d Long Ridge Road. It soon became the Cook and (Charles) Lounsbury Shoe
Manufacturing Company, employing, at its peak, 50 people and using machinery to
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Verbal Boundary description:

Beginning at the southwestern corner of (map/block/lot) 247/402/A. along the
southeastern boundary 831.18 feet to where it joins the right-of-way for lot 2 of
the Stamford Land Trust. It then turns west and follows the northern lot line until
it meets a point opposite the east line of 247/402/A. Then along that eastern
boundary, across Heming Way in a straight line to the southeast corner of 247/402/G
and follow lot G's east Boundary 39.2' to where it meets the southeast corner of the
property at 379 0ld Long Ridge Rd. (247/402/A). Head north 195.14' along the
eastern boundary to where it meets the right-of-way at the northeast corner and
cross north over that land approximately 43' to the southeast corner of 247/402/D.
Continue along that eastern property line to where it meets the driftway of
Parsonage lane. Cross northwesterly to where it meets the southeast corner of lot
A, a vacant Lot, and follow the east property line 393.25' to the northeast corner.
Turn west following the north boundary to where it meets the southeast corner of
249/ /61, Head north along the east property line 188.9' to the northeast corner
of the lot, turn west along the north boundary to the southeast corner of lot X, and
pass north 33.52' along the east boundary to the corner of lot 61A. Cross northerly
in a straight line to the southeast corner of lot B 97.6' to the northeast corner.
Turn east, follow the southerly boundary of lot B, follow that line 191' to the
southwest corner of the property at 249/402/10, and follow its boundary 342.9' to
the southeast corner. Turn northerly and follow the east boundary 416' to where it
meets Rock Rimmon Road and cross the road in a northerly direction to the southeast
corner of the property described as 249/403/12. Follow its east boundary to the
northeast corner and pass westerly behind 249/043/12. Follow its eastern boundary
to the northeast corner and pass westerly behind 249/403.13 to the northeast corner
of lot 66C. Follow this northerly boundary to the southeast corner of lot
249/403/A. Go northerly along the east property line 259.11' to the northeast
corner, turn west and continue along the northern boundary 378.59' to the northwest
corner where it meets Long Ridge Rd. Cross the road in a northwesterly direction to
the point where the western boundary of 212/400/3 meets the New York State line.
Follow the state line for 620' to the northwest corner of the lot and turn south
following the western boundary 160.81' to where it meets the western boundary of lot
2B and go 83.86' to the northwest corner of lot 2A. Continue 107.15' along its
western boundary, pass by the point of the rear of lot 1B and go 128.55' south along
the western line behind lot 1lB. Turn easterly at the southwest corner of lot B and
follow a straight line 261.6' to the northeast corner of lot A on Echo Hill Road.
Turn southerly 132.84; westerly 29.43' and southwesterly 176.93 to where the
property meets the Echo Hill Road. Go easterly along this road 25.58' . Turn
northerly 49.58', then east northeast 294.58' to the northwest cornexr of 212/400/56.
Head southerly 74.25' along that western boundary to the southwest corner and turn
east 85.14' to a point meeting Long Ridge Road, at the southeast corner of the
property. Cross the road diagonally southeast to meet the northerly boundary of
212/400/A. Follow Long Ridge Road southwesterly and southerly along the western
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boundaries of 212/400/B,C,D,E,F to the southwest corner of lot B. Turn easterly
147.5', southerly 29.25', and easterly 143' to the northwest corner of lot C. Go
southerly 114.91' along the westerly boundary to the northwest corner of lot 50 and
go 118.65' to where it meets Parsonage Road. Cross Parsonage Road and go south to
meet the northern boundary of lot 49. Turn westerly along the northern boundary to
the northwest corner at Long Ridge Road. Go southerly to the southwest corner of
lot 49 and turn easterly 183.82' to where lot 49 meets the northwest corner of
210/400/B. Follow a straight line southerly to the soutwest corner of lot B and
turn easterly 93/66' to a corner where it meets 392 0ld Long Rdige’ B. Go south
along 392's western boundary to the northwest corner of lot 47 at 380 0ld Long Ridge
Road (210/400/47). Follow the western boundary of lot 47, 173' to a corner and turn
southeasterly in a straight line to meet the northwest corner of lot 46. Follow the
western boundary to its southwest corner and turn east 10' to meet the northwest
corner of lot 45. Turn south 207' to Erskine Road and continue southerly across the
road to pick up the triangle of land with lots 1 and 2. Go southeasterly across 0ld
Long Ridge Road to the western boundary of lot A. Go southeasterly 276.1l1' along
the western boundary of lot B and southeasterly 71.98' along the southern line of
lot B. Continue southereasterly 102.12' to the point of beginning.

This boundary encompasses the center, and best preserved section of 0ld Long Ridge
Village. To the north the State of New York, while in the other three directions,
the number of modern intrusions severely affects the integrity and cohesiveness of
any potential district.
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